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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apollo Fertility Centre Private
Limited (formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited) (the “Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report including annexures to the Director’s
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Director’s report including annexures to the Director’s report is expected to be made available to
us after that date.

e Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e When we read the Director’s report including annexures to the Director’s report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating
to Other Information’.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. *
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financia! controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not complying with the
requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

» !
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i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

Iy The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 42(vi) to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 42(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company, has used
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility except in respect of maintenance of billing
and inventory records wherein the applications did not have the audit trail feature
enabled throughout the year.

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting softwares for the
period for which the audit trail feature was operating.

Additionally, audit trail that was enabled and operated for the year ended
March 31, 2024, has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory

requirements for record retention, as stated in Note 40 to the financial statements.Q



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

fSw

4

jay Jhawar
Partner
Membership No. 223888
UDIN: 25223888BMKTUH2107
Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 19, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Apollo
Fertility Centre Private Limited (formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited) (the
“Company”) as at March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the criteria for internal
control with reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
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of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

X

-

jay Jhawar
Partner
Membership No. 223888
UDIN:25223888BMKTU2107
Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 19, 2025
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(i) (@) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress and right-of-use assets
were physically verified during the year by the Management which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment including
Right of Use assets and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations.
No discrepancies of 10% or more were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or
financial institutions and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iliy  The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence
reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

In respect of statutory dues:

(@

(b)

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by
it with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2025.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(")

(a)

(b)

(@)

(b)

)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year
and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related

B
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period upto March 31, 2025.

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with any of its directors or directors of it’s holding company, subsidiary
company or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to ¥ 549 Lakhs in the financial year
covered by our audit but had not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
we have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities and other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report which is not mitigated (refer note 2b to the financial statements) indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S)

-

jay Jhawar

Partner

Membership No. 223888
UDIN:UDIN:25223888BMKTU2107

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 19, 2025

D
522



Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)

CIN : U85110TG2009PTC063217

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{All amounis are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
A ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 3,371 3213
(b) Right-of-use of asset 33 5,166 4,565
(c) Capilal work-in-progress 3(b) 35 88
(d) Other intangible assets 4 15 28
(c) Financial asscts
(i) Other financial assets 5 281 459
(f) Income tax assets (net) 6 25 5
Other equity 7 183 118
Total non-current assets 9.076 8,476
Current assets
(a) Inventorics 8 109 151
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade reccivables 9 32 19
(ii} Cash and cash cquivalcnts 10 96 38
(ifi) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 - 350
(iv) Other financial assets 5 787 79
(c) Other current asscts 7 154 156
Total current assets 1,178 793
TOTAL ASSETS 10,254 9,269
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 50 50
(b) Other equity 13 (3,125) (1,626)
Total Equity (3,075) (1,576)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 1,602 1,885
(ii) Lease liabililies 33 5,277 4,828
(b) Provisions 16 54 27
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 8 8
Total non-current liabilities 6,941 6,748
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 582 539
(i) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 18 _
enterprises
Total o.utslanding dues of cre.ditors other than micro 3,869 2414
enterprises and small enterprises
(iif) Leasc Liabilities 33 989 490
(iv) Other financial Liabilities 15 741 448
(b) Provisions 16 22 14
(c) Other current liabilities 19 167 192
Total current liabilities 6,388 4,097
Total liabilities 13,329 10,845
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,254 9,269
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1&2

* Restated; refer note 41.

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Apao) ertility Centre Private Limited
Firm's ;-:gi.urnliun No: 0080728
- . - H
Jhy Jhawar ‘rli\'ﬁﬁs ivasan lyer Anubly
Partner Direcia Direciel

Membership no: 223 DIN: 10334712 DIN: 08252351

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 06, 2025

Place: Hydegabad
Date: May (6, 2025




Apolle Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)

CIN : U85110TG2009PTC063217

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

N For the year ended For the year ended
o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
1 Revenue from operations 20 9,367 8,116
IO  Other income 21 35 41
III Total Income (I+IT) 9,402 8,157
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 1,862 1,614
Cost of services 23 3,242 2,422
Employee benefits expenses 24 1,178 871
Finance costs 25 754 727
Other equity 26 1,479 1,143
Other expenses 27 2,334 1,910
Total expenses (IV) 10,849 8,687
V  Loss before tax (I1I-IV) (1,447) (530)
VI Tax expense
(i) Current tax 40 -
(ii) Deferred tax - -
VII Loss for the year (V-VI) (1,487) (530)
VIII Other comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabality (Refer Note 30) 12) -
(b) Income tax relating to above itemns - -
Total other comprehensive loss for the year (12) -
IX Total comprehensive loss for the year (VII+VIII) (1,499) (530)
Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10 each:
Basic and Diluted (in ) 28 (289) (106)
Corporate information and material accounting policies 1&2
* Restated; refer note 41.
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited
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Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Totrmerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)

CIN : U85110TG2009PTC063217

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Ali amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (1,447) (530)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,479 1,143
Loss on disposal of property, plant and cquipment (net) 4 N
Finance cosls 754 727
Interest income (#2))] (26)
Other cquity (15) 72
754 1,386
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (inerense)/decrease in operating assets:
- Trade rececivables 2 17
- Inventories 42 (64)
- Other assets (751 (325)
Adjustments for increase/(deciease) in operating lisbilities:
- Trade payables 1,473 274
- Other liabilities 258 47
- Provisions 23 22
1,047 (29)
Cash generated from operating activities 1,801 1,357
Income tax refund received /taxes paid (net) 20 -
Net cash flows from operating activities |A] 1,821 1,357
B. Cash used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Including capital work-in-progress, other 717) (216)
intangible asscts and capital advances)
Movement in other bank balances 450 450)
Interest received 26 [C)]
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (241) (670)
C.  Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings (239) 204
Interest paid (238) (254)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,045) (866)
Net cash used in financing activities { C) (1,522) (916)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 58 229)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 38 267
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 96 38

* Restated; refer note 41.

Sce accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm'.k$ cgistration No: 0080728
- "

Ajay Jhawar
Partiir

Membership no: 223888

Place: Hyderabad

Date:(iY (4,027

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Apdllo Fertility Centre Private Limited

N

Sriram’Srinivasan Iyer
Director
DIN: 10334712

Anubh
Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 06, 2025

DIN: (182523




Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited
(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
CIN : U85110TG2009PTC063217

" Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2025
(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

No. of shares Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 500,000 50
Issued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 500,000 50
issue of shares - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 500,000 50
b. Other equity

Other equity
Effect of common .
control business Retagned Total
C earnings
combination

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 79 79
Effect of common control business combination
(refer note 41) (1,175) - (1,175)
Loss for the year - (530) (530)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (1,175) (451) (1,626)
Loss for the year - (1,487) (1,487)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes - (12) (12)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (1,175) (1,950) (3,125)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 008072S

Ajay Jhawar
= Partner
Membership no: 223888

152

Place: Hyderabad
Date: MY 14,0028

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

¥,

Sriram Srinivasan Iyer

Director
DIN: 10334712

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 06, 2025

Anu
Director
DIN: (08252351

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 06, 2025




Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
CIN: U85110TG2009PTC063217

Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts are _i‘1‘17 3 Lakhs ex

1.

Corporate information

Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited ('the Company') is a Private Limited Company incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act applicable in India. The address of its registered office and principle place of business is 7-1-
617/A, 615 and 616, Imperial Towers, 7th Floor, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500038, Telangana. The main business of the
Company is to provide basic and advanced (IVF) Fertility treatments.

Material accounting policies
A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements which comprise the Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity (“Financial Statements”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2022 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has consistently
applied accounting policies to all periods.

B. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs except
otherwise stated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 116 and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Going Concern:

In assessing whether the going concemn assumption is appropriate, the Company has considered a range of factors
relating to current and expected profitability, debt repayment schedule and potential sources of financing. Further, the
Holding Company has issued a comfort letter to enable the Company to meet the shortfall in their funding
requirements, if any. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on such factors considered and based on current
indicators of future economic conditions there is a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.




Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
CIN: U85110TG2009PTC063217

Notes forming part of financial statements

C.

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, disclosures as at the date of financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the future periods.

The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimates that have been made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined
by management at the time the asset is acquired and is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The lives are
based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life,
such as changes in technology. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses inputs from observable markets to the extent available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the Discounted Cash
Flow (DCF) model, which involves various judgments and assumptions. Judgements include consideration of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair values of the financial instrument. Refer note 36 for further disclosures.

Income taxes

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the
purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid /
recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Defined employee benefit plans (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available
mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity
obligations are given in note 30.

Claims, provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds
is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best
estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve
estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.




Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
CIN: U85110TG2009PTC063217

Notes forming part of financial statements

f)

)

h)

Other estimates

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts
receivable by analysing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current
economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.

Impairment of investments
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments annually, or more frequently when there is an indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions:

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the closing date. The actual outflow of resources at a
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Company in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

On acquisition, the Company assesses the classification of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities and reclassifies them
where the classification is inappropriate for the Company purposes.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. The same
is carried at cost and tested for impairment on an accrual basis in accordance with the impairment policy stated below:

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised based on the difference between the purchase consideration and net
assets acquired during acquisition. The same is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units (CGU)
or group of CGU’s that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rated based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

The Company eams revenue primarily by providing healthcare services. Other sources of revenue include revenue
earned through Operation and Management (O&M) contracts and brand license agreements. Revenue is recognised

CHARTERE

COOUNTANTS




Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
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Notes forming part of financial statements

upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. When there is uncertainty on
ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Revenue is reduced for
loyalty points granted upon sale and are stated net of discounts wherever applicable.

The Company assessed its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine it is acting as principal or agent.
The service revenues are presented net of related doctor fee in cases where the company is not the primary obligor

and does not have the pricing latitude.

Rendering of services:

(a) Healthcare Services
Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for outpatient healthcare services. Services include charges for
consultation for medical professional services.

(b) Other Services
(i) Project Consultancy income is recognised based on the contractual terms as and when the services are
rendered.
(i1) One-time franchise license fees is recognised based on achievement of the milestones as per the terms of
the contract and where ever there is no bifurcation of total fee then over the period of the agreement.
(iii) Franchisee license fee is recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the contracts.
(iv) Other services fee is recognized on basis of the services rendered and as per the terms of the agreement.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
Rental Income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract
scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added
to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the stand alone selling price. Services added that are
not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for
prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, orasa
termination of the existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

The company receive payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules and upon submission of
requisite documentation; accounts receivables are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.
Contract assets includes amounts related to our contractual right to consideration for completed performance
obligations not yet invoiced. Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of satisfying a performance
obligation as per the terms of the contract. Revenue in this case shall be recognised based on the aforementioned
accounting policy as applicable to that customer.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to render multiple services to a customer. The
Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract.
Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of
the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Judgement is also applied in the assessment of principal versus agent considerations with respect to contracts with
customers and doctors which is determined based on the substance of the arrangement.

Judgement is also applied to determine the transaction price of the contract. The transaction price shall include a fixed
amount of customer consideration and components of variable consideration which constitutes discounts and
redemption patterns of loyalty customers. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the
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Notes forming part of financial statements

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations:

The Company has applied practical expedient with respect to non-disclosure of information with respect of remaining
performance obligations considering the fact that the company's performance obligations, i.e. the treatment in case of
healthcare segment and the lab investigation segment has an original expected duration of one year or less.

Significant financing component

The company has applied the practical expedient with respect of non-adjustment of transaction price for the effects
of significant financing components, since the company expects at the inception of the contract that the period
between the receipt of consideration from the customer and the satisfaction of performance obligations will be one
year or less.

Recognition of asset with respect to cost of obtaining a contract and cost to fulfil the contract.

The Company has applied practical expedient of recognizing the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an
expense when incurred since the company expects that the amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwise
would have recognised is one year or less.

G. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The determination
of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The determination of whether an arrangement is (or
contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or
contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of
the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes
its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been

classified as financing cash flows. Further, refer note no. 33, for effect of transition to Ind AS 116, classification
of leases and other disclosures relating to leases.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

H. Borrowings and borrowing costs
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
1. Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Employee benefits in the form of provident fund, employees’ state insurance fund and labour welfare fund are

considered as defined contribution plan. Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as amended, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined
benefit retirement plan (‘the Gratuity plan’) covering eligible employees. The Gratuity plan provides a lump-sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitations or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee’s salaries and tenure of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
« service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
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* net interest expense or income; and
* remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and not reclassified to profit or loss.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of
the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or
termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of
compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to
the fund maintained with the Insurer. The Company recognises accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial
valuation. Non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised in the period in which the absences occur.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-
based transactions are set out in notes to accounts.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of
the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured initially
at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of
settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Taxable profit differs from
“Profit before tax™ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of such deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting date.

Current and Deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

L. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure in
making the asset ready for its intended use and cost of borrowing till the date of capitalisation in the case of assets
involving material investment and substantial lead time.

An item of Property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain/loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
Property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Expenses in the nature of general repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is recognised on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed

in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Estimated useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful lives in years
Plant and equipment 5- 15 years
Medical equipment 13 years
Surgical instruments 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

The estimated useful lives and residual values are periodically reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of estimated useful life and lease term.

Capital work in progress are items of Property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use
and are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.
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M. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of an
intangible asset comprises of purchase price and attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use. Intangible assets are amortised on the straight line method over their estimated useful life.

Amortisation

Amortisation on Intangible assets is recognised on straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013

Estimated useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful lives in years
Computer software 3 years
Non-compete fees over the period of agreement

The estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

N. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

O. Inventories
The inventories comprise of medical consumables and others which are utilised in providing healthcare services dealt
with by the Company and are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of these inventories comprises of
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for
applicable taxes wherever applicable, applying the First - In First - Out method.
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P.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle such obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of such obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be recovered and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of the Profit and Loss.

Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trade) are recognised on trade date. While loans and borrowings and
payables are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the following
categories:

Non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, investments in subsidiaries, equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and non-derivative
financial liabilities at amortised cost. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the Company's business model for which it is
held and on the substance of the contractual terms / arrangements.

Non - derivative financial assets
* Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which
are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and eligible current and non-current assets.
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Cash comprises cash on hand, cash at bank, cheques on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Investments in subsidiaries
On initial recognition, these instruments are recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequently they are measured at cost.

Investments in Equity instruments at FVTOCI
On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by- instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income (OCI) pertaining to investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the "equity instruments through other comprehensive income". The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the investments.
A financial asset is held for trading if:
- It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or
- On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedge instrument or a financial

guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
Company's right to receive the dividends is established and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

» Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. A financial asset which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,
with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the 'Other income' line item.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises financial assets when the contractual right to the cash flows from the asset expires or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. On de-recognition of a financial asset (except as mentioned above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI),
the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset,
and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities

= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

* Financial liability subsequently measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liability

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities, when and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities de-recognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

R. Cash flow statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available
information.

S. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit / (loss) attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per
share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

T. New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025,
MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and
leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial
statements
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(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stuted)

Note4 Intangible assets

As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 _ March 31,2024
Computer software 15 28
15 28
Computer Software Total
I. Gross Carrying Value
Balance as at April 1,2023 - -
Effect of common control business combination (refer note 41). 74 74
Additions 20 20
Disposal - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 94 94
Additions I 1
Disposal - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 95 95
I1. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 =] -
Effect of common control business combination (refer note 41). 50 50
Amortisation expense for the year 16 16
Balance as at March 31, 2024 66 66
Amortisation expense for the year 14 14
Additions on acquisition of business - .
Balance as at March 31, 2025 80 80
III. Net carrying value
as at March 31, 2024 28 28
as at March 31, 2025 15 15

Note: The company has not revalued any of its intangiable assets during the year.

&
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Note 5 Other financial assets As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Sccurity deposits 281 94 359 =
Interest accrued:
- from bank deposits . - - 15
Unbilled revenue - 50 - 58
Advance to employees - 3 - 2
Bank deposits with the residual maturity of more than 12 months - - 100 -
Other reccivable - 640 - 4
Total 281 787 459 79
Note 6 Income tax assets (nct) As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance tax/ TDS receivable 25 5
Total 25 5
Note 7 Other assets As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(Unsccured, considered good unless slaled otherwisc)} Non Current Current Non Current Current
Capital advances 172 - 114 -
Prepaid expenscs 6 28 E 19
Advances to suppliers E 126 = 137
Other deposits (telephone, electricity deposits, for other utility, etc.) 5 = 4 -
Total 183 154 118 156
Note 8 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost and nel realisable value) Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Medical consumables and others 109 151
Total 109 151
Note 9 Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- Unsceured. considered good 32 19
- Credit impaired 122 138
154 157
Less: Loss allowance (122) (138)
Total 32 19

(i) No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person
(ii) The average credit period on sale of service generally ranges between 30-60 days

(iii) No singlc customer represents 10% or more of the company’s lotal revenue during the ycar ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. Therefore the customer

concentration risk is limited due to the large and unrelated customer base

(iv) Trade receivables are unsecured and are delivered from revenue eamed from providing healthcare services. No interest is charged on the outstanding balance,

regard|less of the age of the balance

(v) The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix
takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the aging of the

days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

(vi) Trade receivables include amounts receivable from related parties (refer note 31)

{vii) Movement in the expected credit Toss allowance:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at beginning of the ycar 138 65
Add: Expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses (net) (15) 72
Balance at end of the year 123 137

=( crartered \ o
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(viil) Trade receivables ageing sehedule os on 31 March 2025

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of transaction

Hagda Less thanSGmpnthsiiol 1 -2 years 223 years Muore than 3 years T
6 months year N ! ,
Undisputed - considered gaod 25 6 | - 32
Undisputed - Signilicant increasc in credit - - - - =
1isk
Undisputed - credit impaired - | 4 5 112 122
Disputed - considered good - - - - %
Disputed - Significant increase in credit risk
Disputed - credit impaired = - - - - -
Total 25 7 5 5 112 154
Less: allowancc (or credit loss - 1 4 5 112 122
Net Trade reccivables 25 6 1 - = 32
Trade receivables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for the following perivds from the date of transaction
e Less than  [Simcnth-jiol! 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years po
6 months year
Undisputed - considered good I | - 7 19
Undisputed - significant increase in credit B
risk
Undisputed - credit impaired - 2 5 1% 113 138
Disputed - considered good - < B - -
Disputed - significant increasc in credit risk - - - = - -
Disputed - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 11 3 5 18 120 155
Less: allowance for credit loss - 2 5 18 113 137
Net Trade receivables 11 I - - 7 19
Note 10 Cash and cash eqaivalents As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Balances with banks
- in current accounts 86 32
(b) Cash on hand 10 6
Total 96 38
Note 11 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) in deposit accounts
- Original maturity morc than 3 months and less than 12 months* - 350
- 350

w Total

Space intentionally left blank
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Nute 12

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Share Capital

Authorised Shure capital :

5,00,000 ( March 31, 2024 : 5,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 cach 50 50
Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
5,00,000 ( March 31, 2024 : 5,00,000) Fquity Shares fully paid o T 10 each 50 50
30 50

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and ding at the b ing and at the end of the year:

Number of shares Share capital

(Amount()

Balance as at April 1, 2023 500,000 50
[ssued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 500,000 50
Issued during the year = 2.
Balance as at March 31, 2025 500,000 50

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred fo as equity shares having a face value of T 10/- cach. Each holder of equity share is cligible for onc vote
per share held. In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining asscts of the Company in proportion to the
number of cquity sharcs held by the sharcholders. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of sharcholders at the ensuing

Annual General Meeling,

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares held shares held
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 499,999 50 - -
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited - - 499,999 50
(iv) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the equity shares:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Number of % holding of Number of % holding of
shares held equity shares shares held equity shares
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited 499,999 100% - -
Apollo Specially Hospilals Private Limited - - 499.999 100%
(v) Details of shares held by promoters.
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % of total % Change No. of shares % of total shares % Change during
shares during the the year
year
Apolio [lcalth and Lifestyle Limited 499,999 100% 100% - 0% 0%
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited - 0% -100% 499,999 100% 0%
Ms. Sangita Reddy | 0% 0% i 0% 0%
Note 13 Other equity
As at As at

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

(i) Business transfer deficit adjustment account (1.175) (1,175)
(i) Retained eurnings (1,950} (451)
(3.125) (1,626)

(1) Business transfer deficit adjustment account

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at beginning of year (1,175) (1,175)
Confribution during the year - -
Balance at end of the year (1.175) (1,175)

&
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Apolle Fertility Centre Private Limited
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in T Lakhs except shave data and wheve otherwise stated)

Note 14

(ii) Retained earnings For the ycar ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balance al beginning of year (451) 79
Loss for the year (1,487) (530)
Other comprehensive income arising out of remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net ol taxes) (12) -
Balance at cnd of the year (1,950) {451)
Retained camings represents cumulative undistributed profits of the Company and can be utilised in aceordance with provisions of the Companies Act,
Borrowings
As ot March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Long term loans (rom banks (refer nole (i) 1,604 582 1.486 539
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 2 - 1 -
Total 1.602 S42 1R85 530
* The interest on preference shares has been accrued and added 1o the principal.
Notes:
{i) Details of term loan from banks
- J P Details of
Particulars l::::pM“Lg/: l::l::l?‘:iglhs repayment Nature of Rate of Interest | Rate of [nterest
31,2025 31,2024 terms and Security March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Maturitv
Secured by First
Pari-passu  charge
on movable fixed
asscls, currenl|
The loan is [asscts and letter of
repayable in 22 comfort for 20% ol
quarterly the loan  valuc|
HDEC Bank 205 486 (:;‘r';‘:]';“r::“ g‘::;m s Apolle 8.42% 9.47%
November |Enterprises
2019 till Limited and Letter
August 2025) of Guarantee for
80% of loan valuc|
from Apoalla
Health and
Lifestyle Limited
Secured by curren|
asscts and movable!
The loan is  |fixed asscty
[CICI Bank 100 - repayuble in 16 |(Including 8.95% Na
quarterly  |leaschold
instalments |improvements) of
the Company, both
present and future.
Secured by first
paripassu  charge
The loan is |00 curTent assets of
repayable in 15 [the company both
quarterly present and future
CICI Bank 89 29 | instalments jand Enfire movable} -y g0, 8.95%
(starting from | fixed assets
November  |(including
2021 till leasehold
August 2025) |improvements) of
the company both|
present and future,
Apgregate  valug|
(as per most receni
audited  accounts)
of gross fixed
The loan is |assets and capital|
repayable in 20 [Work in  progest
quarterly  |are reduced by the
instalments | accumulated
ICICI Bank 775 795 (starting from |depreciation  and $.95% 8.95%
February 2025 (all indebiness  (as
till November |per most recent|
2029) audited accounts)|
having cquivalen|
or superior charge|
over such fixed
assets 'WIP.

O | ACCOUNTANTS/ M
ﬁ) r~
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Notes forming part ol Financial Statements

(All amounts are in & Lakhs except shai e data and where otherwise stated)

Note I5

Note 16

Sccured by firsi
paripassu  charge
The lounis  |on current asscts of
repayable in 16 |the company both
quarterly  |present and future
ICICI Bank 300 300 instalments  |and Entire movable R.95% R.95%
(starting from |fixcd assets
June 2025 o [(including
March 2029) f|easchold
improveménts) ol
the comnany both
Secured by charge
The loan is [on movable lixed
repayable in 28 |assels, current
quarterly assets - receivables
HDFC Bank m 34| instalments und lelier of 8.42% 10.21%
(starting from |comfort [rom
March 2021 till [Apollo  Hospitals
December  |enlerprises
2027) Limiled.
. |Secured by charge
e lOilI:l ' lon movable fixed|
repayable in 28 ussets, cument
2:::::: assels - receivables
HDFC Bank 246 276 | insialments :::1&» ﬁ""" fm‘; 8.42% 10.21%
(starting from Apollo  Hospitals
September e
2022 tll une [P
it Limited.
2029)

(if) The Company has utilised the borrowings for the purposes for which they were taken.
(iii) The Company has adhered 1o debt repayment and interest service obligations on time. The Company has not been declared as willful defavlier by any

bunk or [inancial institution or other lender.
(iv) All borrowings are in [ndian Rupees.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics measured at amortised cost:
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings
Other liabilitics
- Payables on purchasc of property, plant and equipment
- Others

Total

Pravisions
Employee benefits (refer note 30)

- Compensaled absences
- Gratuity

Total

As al March 31,2025

As at Murch 31,2024

Non Current Current Non Current Current
- 5 0
- 453 439
) 283 . £
- 741 - 448
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
19 13 9 f
35 9 18 b
54 22 27 14




Apollo Fertility Centre Privote Limited
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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Note 17 Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Delerred Tax liabilitics ¥ ®
Total 8 8
Naote 18 Trade Payables As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payables
-Total outstanding dues ol micro enterprises und small enlerprises (refer nole 32) 1R -
-Total outstanding dues ol creditors other than micru enterprises and small enlerprises 3,869 2414
Total 3,887 2414
Include payable to realted parties ( refer note 31 )
Trade payables apeing schedule as on 31 March 2025
o] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul
articulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
yoar Venrs
MEME 18 - - = 18
Other than MSME 2,030 367 94 1,378 3,869
Disputed ducs — MSME - - -
Disputed ducs - Other than MSME - - - - -
Total 2,048 367 94 1,378 3,887
Trade payables ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024
(o] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul
articulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
vear vears
MSME - - - = =
Other than MSME 1.849 253 304 ] 2414
Disputed dues - MSME - - -
Disputed dues - Other than MSME - v - - -
Total 1,849 253 304 8 2,414
Note:
i. The average credit period on purchases of goods ranges from immediate paymenits to credit period of 60 days based on the naturc of the expenditure. The
Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
ii. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issucd an officc memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspond: with its the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after [iling of the
M d Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable fo such enterprises as at March 31. 2025 has been made in the (inancial
stalemenis based on information d and available with the Company. Further in view of the management the impact of interest, if any, that may be
payable in d with the p. of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Act, 2006 (‘The MSMED Act’) is not cxpected to be
material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier.
ifi. The Company consider thal the carrying amount of Trade payables approximate 1o their fair valucs.
Note 19 Other current liabilitics As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Advances from customers 109 179
Statutory Linbilities 58 13
Total liabilities 167 192
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Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 20

Note 21

Note 22

Note 23

Note 24

Revenue from operations (refer note 39)

(a) Sale of services
{b) Other operating revenucs
- Commission on pharmacy revenue
- Others
Tatal
Note: Refer Note 34 for Disaggregation of revenue

Other income

a) Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at fair value through

profit or loss:
Interest on
- Fixed deposits with Banks
- other financial asscts carried at amortised cost

b) Others
Others

Total

Cost of materials consumed

Medical consumables
Implant cost
Printing and stationery
Total

Aical bl

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024 *

9,248 7.972

. 24

119 120

9,367 8,116
For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
11 15

10 11

21 26

14 15

14 15

35 41

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
1,834 1,597
1 a
27 17
1,862 1,614

Breakup of cost of

Particulars

For the year cnded

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *

Opening Inventory 151 87
Add: Purchases 1,820 1,678
Less: Closing inventory 109 151
Total 1,862 1,614

Cost of services

Professional fee to doctors

Laboratory tests and ambulance charges

Others (Patient facilitation and diet expenses, Camp expenses, Bio medical wastage, etc.,)
Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and wages

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity expenses (refer note 30)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
2,813 2,015

345 328

84 79

3,242 2,422

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
1,069 795

47 38

14 15

48 23

1,178 871
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(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 25

Note 26

Note 27

Finance costs

Interest on

- bank overdrafts and loans

- lease liability (refer note 33)

Bank and finance charges (includes Guarantee commission)
Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and cquipment (refer note 3(a))
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)
Depreciation on right on use of assets (refer note 33)

Total

Other expenses

Power and fuel
House keeping expenses
Rent
Repairs and maintcnance

- Building

- Machinery

- Others
Communication expenses
Office maintenance expenses
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Printing and stationery
Recruitment charges
Advertisement and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (Refer Note below)
Seminar expenses
Impairment loss recognized under expected credit loss model for trade reccivabies
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Miscellancous expenses

Total

Note:
Payment to auditors (including GST)
- Statutory audit fee

Space intentionally left blank

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 *
195 209

519 475

40 43

754 727

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 *
563 602

14 16

902 525

1,479 1,143

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 *
270 230
212 176
212 49

89 136
87 56
109 86
44 36
152 111
2 P
26 32

12 13
- 1
692 526
78 72
346 305
6 1
1 -
sy 72
4 £
7 8
2338 1,910
6 |
6 1
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(Al amounts arc in ¥ Lakhs except share data and where otherwisc stated)

Note 28: Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of capital advances)

Note 29: Earnings per share

(i) Loss for the year A

Basic
(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares of T 10/- each outstanding during the
year

Dilution
(iv) Weighted average number of equity shares of ¥ 10/- each outstanding during the
year

Earnings per equity share of ¥ 10/- each
(v) Basic (in ¥) - [A/B]
(vi}) Diluted (in 3) {A/C]

Space intentionally left blank

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025

21 -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
(1,447) (530)

500,000 500,000

500,000 500,000
(289) (106)
(289) (106)
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwisc stated)

Note 30:  Employec benefits

a. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans. for qualifying employees. The Company recognised T 47 Lakhs (Ycar
ended March 31, 2024: ¥ 38 Lakhs) for provident fund conlributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. The Employee state insurance is
opcrated by the Employce State Insurance corporation. Under these schemes, the Company is required to contributc a specific pereentage of the payroll cost as
per Lhe statule. The amount recognised as expense lowards contribution lo Employee Stale Insurance was Z 1 lakh (Previous year T 1 lakh).

b. Defined benefit plans

The Company provides to the eligible employees defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity governed by Payment of Gratuity act, 1972. The gratuity plan
provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15
days’” salary payable for cach completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon complction of five continuous years of service. The measurement date used for
determining retirement benefits for gratuity is March 31.

The following (ables summarise nel benefit expenses recognised in the stalement of Profil and Loss, the status of funding and the amount recognised in the

Balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

(i) Balance Sheet

The assets, liabilitics and surplus / (deficit) position of the defined bencefit plans at the Balance Sheet date were:

Particulars — LSS
Marech 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 44 26
Fair Value of plan assels - -
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 44 26
Current and non current classification of the present valuc of obligati
. As at As at
e March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current 9 B
Non current 35 I8
44 26
(ii) Movements in Present Value of Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars Plan Assets Plan Obligation Total
As at April 1, 2023 - 17 17)
Current service cost - 15 (15)
Interest cost - - -
Interest income - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experence adjustments - - -
Benefit paid - (6) 6
As at March 31, 2024 - 26 (26)
Current service cost - 14 (14)
Interest cost - - -
Interest income - - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions = = -
Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments - 12 (12)
Benefit paid - 8) 8
As at March 31, 2025 - 44 (44)
(iii) Statement of Profit and Loss
The charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee Benefit Expenses
Current service cost 14 15
Interest cost - -
Interest income - -
14 15

Nect impact on profit before tax
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Remeasurement gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remcasurement of the net defined benefit plans:
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - E
Actuarial (gain)’loss arising ftom experience adjustments 19) E
Remeasurement gain / (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income (12) =

(iv) Assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan obligations of the defined bencfits plans at their fair value on the Balance Sheet, assumptions under Ind
AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars sia Aslat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Adlrition rate 35.00% 35.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Indian Assurcd Lives Indian Assurcd Lives

Mortality rate Mottality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate table Ultimate table

Note:
The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into accounts inflation, seniorily, promotion and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand factors in the employment market

(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivily of the ovetall plan obligations to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 41 43 24 23
Allrition rate (1% movement) 42 42 24 24
Salary escalation 1ate (1% movement) 44 41 23 24

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the year and
may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the
sensitivity to the assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the Balance Sheet has been applied. The methods and types of
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous year.

(vi) Maturity analysis
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expccted cash flows:
Within 1 year 9 5
1-2 ycar 8 5
2-3 year 9 5
3-4 year 7 4
4-5 ycar 6 4
5-10 year 15 8

c. Compensated absences

The accrual of unutilised leave is determined for the entire available balance standing to the credit of the employeces at the end of the year. The value of such
leave balunce is determined by an independent acturial valuation and charged to the statement of profit or loss for the period determined.

Company pay leave encashment benefits to employces as an when claimed subject to the policics of the Company. The significant actuarial assumptions uscd for
the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount ratc 6.99% 7.22%
Attrition rate 35.00% 35.00%
Salary escalation ratc 5.00% 5.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality rate Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate table Ultimatc table
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Note 31: Related party transactions

a) Names of related parties and their relationship:
Name of the party

Apollo Health and Lifestyle Limited

Apolio Hospitals Enterprisc Limited

Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited

Apollo Spectra Centres Private Limited

Apollo Cradle and Children Hospital Private Limited
AHLL Risk Management Private Limited

Alliance Dental Care Limited

Apollo Sugar Clinics Limited

Apollo Dialysis Private Limited

AHLL Diagnostics Limited

Care Diagnostics Limited

Apollo Pharmacies Limited

Mr. Sriram Srinivasan Iyer

Mr. Anubhav Prashant

Mr. Chandra Sekhar Chivukula

b) Transactions with the above related parties during the period:

Nature of relationship
Holding Company
Ultimate Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Company in which KMP/Directors or their relatives are interested
Non - Executive Director
Non - Executive Director
Non - Executive Director

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income from sale of services
Apollo Hospital Enterprises Limited 192 -
Corporate Expenses
Apollo Health and Life Style Limited 2 -
Lab Investigation Charges
Apollo Health and Life Style Limited 26 27
Professional Fee
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 24 -
. . For the Ycar Ended For the Year Ended
¢) Balances receivable from/payable to related parties are as follows: March 31, 2025 March 3_1, 2024
Trade Payable
Apollo Health and Life Style Ltd 35 13
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited 164 -
Apollo Pharmacies Limited 213 -
Apollo Hospital Enterprises Limited 2 -
Trade Receivable
Apollo Hospital Enterprises Limited 2 -
Other Receivable
631 -

Apollo Specialty Hospitals Private Limited
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Note 32:  Disclosure relating to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act 2006:

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Principal amount duc to suppliers under MSMED Act, as at the end of the ycar 16 -
(ii) Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount as at the end of the year 2 -
(iii) Payment madc to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year = =
(iv) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than Section 16) = =
(v) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) - -
(vi) Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments - -
(vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to supplicrs under MSMED Act (i) + (iv) 2 -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management. This has been relicd upon by the auditors.
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Note 33: Leases

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets

For the year ended

For the yecar ended

il ] March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balance 4,565 5,052
Additions 1,503 38
Sub lease to holding company - -
Lease modifications E .
Ternmination - -
Depreciation (902) (525)
Closing Balance 5.166 4.565

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU asscts is included under depreciation and amortization expensc in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The following is the movement in lease liabilities

For the year ended

For the year ended

Rarticulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Opening Balance 5318 5,709
Effect of common control business combination (refer note 41) 1,474 -
Additions - -
Lease modifications - -
Finance cost accrucd during the year 519 475
Termination - -
Payment of lease liabilities (1,045) (866)
Closing Balance 6.266 5.318
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars Asiat Asjal

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Non-current lease liabilities 5,277 4,828
Current lease liabilities 989 490
Total 6,266 5318

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on discounted basis

Particulars ks Bl

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 980 490
After one ycar but not more than five years 1,504 1,276
More than five years 3,782 3,552
6,266 5318
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Note 34: Revenuc from contracts with customers

The Company earns revenue primarily by providing healthcare services operates through various multispecialty Spectra and Cradle centers across India, Other sources of
revenue include revenuc camed through Operation and Management (O&M) contracts, brand license agreements and contracts for clinical trials.

Revenues for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Disagoresation of revenue

The following table provides information about disaggregated revenue by geographical market, major service line, timing of revenue recognition and category of

customer.

The spread of operation of the company are only in India and so the below table summaries the region wise revenue within India.

Healthcare services

Region Year ended March Year ended March
31. 2025 31,2024
Karnataka 1,775 1,654
Maharastra 1,491 1,410
Telangana 1,650 1,295
Tamil Nadu 1,404 1,107
Others 3,047 2,650
Total revenue from contracts with customers from healthcare 9,367 8,116
Category of Customer Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Cash 9,367 8,116
Credit - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 9,367 8,116
Nature of treatment* Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
In-Patient - -
Out-Patient 9,367 8,116
Total revenue from contracts with customers from healthcare services 9,367 8,116
* this disclosure pertain to healthcare services segment only
Timing of revenue recognition Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Services tiansferred at point in time 9,367 8,116
Services transferred over a period of time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 9,367 8,116
Contract liability
Changes in advance received from customers are as follows:
Particulars Yecar ended March Year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 179 141
Additions 109 179
Revenue recognized that was included in advance received from customers balance at beginning of the year 179 141
Balancc at the end of the year 109 179
The total of disaggregated revenuc of healthcare disclosed above would agree to the disclosures made in the opcrating segment.
Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:
Healtheare Services
Particulars Year ended March Year ended March
31,2025 31,2024
Contract price (as reflected in the invoice raised on the customer as per the terms of the contract with customer) 9,367 8,117
Reduction towards variable components:
- Discounts granted to customers - 1
Reduction towards monies received on behalf of ¢
- Fee for Scrvice Consultants - -
Revenue recognised in the profit & loss account 9,367 8,116
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Nute 35: Financial instruments

(i) Capital management
Equity shaie capital and other cquily are considered for Lhe purpose of Company's capital management

The Company manages its capital so as lo safeguard its abilily to continue as a going concern and to oplimise returns to sharcholders. The capital structure
of the company is based on management's judgement of its strategic day-to-day needs with a focus on lotal equily so as to maintain investor, creditors and
market confidence

The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital to shareholders. The Compuny may take appropriate steps in order to maintain,
or is necessary, adjust its capital structure

(ii) Financial risk management
The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financials risks, namely Interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management has the overall responsibility for establishing and goveming the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the changes
in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigaling actions are overseen by the Board of Directors of the Compuny.

A Interest risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates, The risk is managed by the Company
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The sensitivity analyses befow have been determined based vn the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk intemally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant. the Company's:
Loss for Lhe year ended March 31, 2025 would decreasefincrease by ¥ 11 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2024: decrease/increase by X 12 Lakhs). This
is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

B Credit risk management

Credil risk refers Lo the risk that a counter party will defaull on its contractual ebligations resulling in financial loss to the Company. The Company takes duc
care while extending uny credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.

Trade reccivables

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade reccivables are limited, due to Company's customer base being large and diverse. All trade reccivables are
reviewed and assessed for default on a monthly basis.

Historical expericnee of collecting reccivables is that credit risk is low. Ilence, trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial asscts, The
Company dacs not have significant credit risk exposure lo any single counter party.

Other financial assets
The Company maintain cxposure in cash and cash equivalent, term deposits with banks. The Company's maximum cxposure of credit risk as at March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024 is the carmying valuc of cach class of financial asscts.

C Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by
cnsuring, as far as possiblc. that it will always have suficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when due. Also, the Company has unutilised credit limits with
banks. Thc Company maintained a cautious liquidity stratcgy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
Cash flow from opcrating activitics provides the funds to service the financial liabilitics on a day to day basis.

The Company regularly maintains the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet opcrational nceds. Any short-term
surplus cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other operational requircments, is retained as cash and
cash cquivalents (lo the extent required) and any cxcess is invesled in interest bearing short term deposits with appropriate malurilics to oplimisc lhe cash
returns on investments while ensuring sufTicient liquidity lo meel its liabilitics.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of significant financial labilitics as of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Trade pavables Lease Linbilities Other financial labilities Borrowings
Less than | year 3,887 1,017 741 582
More than 1 year and less than 5 year - 3,736 - 1,602
More than 5 year - 4,987 - -

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Trade pavables Lease Linbilitics Other i fal Habilities Barrowings

Less than | year 2414 926 448 539
Morc than | ycar and Icss than 5 year - 3,067 . 1,704
More thaii 5 ycar - 4,412 - 181

Space intentionally left blank




Apatlo Fertility Centre Private Limited

(Formerly known as Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited)

CIN : U85110TG2009PTC063217

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(All amounts are in T Lakhs except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 36:

Note 37:

Note 38:

Category-wise classification of Financial Instruments

The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as follows:

. Carrying value Fair value
A Fair value
Particulars . As at As at As at As at
Hierarchy
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial asscts
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents NA 96 38 96 38
(ii) Bank balanccs other than cash and cash cquivalents NA - 350 - 350
(iii) Trade receivables NA 32 19 32 19
(iv) Other financial asscls * NA 1,068 538 1,068 538
Total Financial assets 1,196 945 1,196 945
Financial liabilities
Measured at Amortised cost
(i) Borrowings NA 2,184 2,424 2,184 2424
(ii) Trade payables NA 3,887 2414 3,887 2414
(iii) Other financial liabilities ** NA 741 448 741 448
(iv) Lease liabilities NA 6,266 5318 6,266 5,318
Total Financial liabilities 13,078 10,604 13,078 10,604

* Other financial assets includes Security deposits with the vendors, unbilled revenue, advances to employees, bank deposits with residual maturity of more
than 12 months and other receivable.

** Includcs interest accrucd on borrowings, payable on property, plant and equipment and other payables.

Calculation of fair values

The fair valucs of the financial assets and liabilitics are defined as the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with those used for
the year ended March 31, 2024.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair valuc as at balance sheet date:

The fair valucs of investments in unquoted cquily investiments has been cstimaled using a discounted cash flow model under income approach. The valuation
requires management to make cerfain assumptions about model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate and credit risk, the probabilities of the
various estimates within range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management estimate of fair value for these unquoted investments.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has rcleased draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Group will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject
rules arc notificd and will give appropriatc impact in its financial statcrnents in the period in which, the Code becomes cffective and the related rules to
determine the financial impact arc published.
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Note 39:

Note 40:

The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31. 2024

Particulars Numerator Denominator 3L March; | STMarch; Variance Reasons for variance
2025 2024
Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabilities 0.18 0.19 -5%|The deercase is primarily because of
decrease in current assets
Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt* Sharcholder's Equity -0.71 -1.54 54%|The decrease is primarily because of
decreasc in shareholder's cquity
Debt Service Coverage |Earings available for | Debt service* 0.52 1.46 -65%| The decrease is primarily because of
Ratio dcbt service* decrcase in camings
Retum of Equity Net Profits aller taxes | Average shareholder's -0.64 -1.92 67%|Decrease is primarily on account of]
equily increase in loss for the current year
Inventory Tumover Revenue from Average Inventory 72.05 68.20 6%|Increase is primarily on account of
Ratio Opcrations decrcase in average inventory
Trade Receivable Credit sales Average Receivables 927.57 350.03 165%|Incrcasc is primarily on account of]
Tumover Ratio decrease in average receivables
Trade Payable Turnover |Purchases Avcrage Trade Payables 235 2.62 -10%|Decrease is ptimarily on account of]
Ratio decrease in average trade payables
Net Capital Turnover  |Revenue from Working Capital* -1.80 -2.46 27%|Increase is primarily on account of
Ratio Operations increasc in revenue for the year
Net Profit Ratio Net Profits after taxes  [Revenue from -0.16 -0.07 -143%|Decrease is primarily on account of
Opcrations increasc in loss for the current year
Return on Capital Earnings before interest |Capital Employed* 1.35 -0.34 -501%|Dccrcase is primarily on account off
Employed and tax (EBIT)* increase in loss for the current year
Return on Investment*  |Income generated from |Investrment NA NA -

investments

*Notes:

i) Total debt = Long-term borrowings + Short term borrowings + Interest accrued on borrowings
ii) Eamings available for debt service = Net Profit after tax + Depreciation + Interest Expensc

iii) Debt Service = Principal repayments of borrowings + Interest payments + Lease Payments

iv) Working Capital = Current assets - Current Liabilities
v) Capital Employed = Tangible networth + Total debt including Interest

vi) EBIT = Profit before tax + Interest (excluding interest on lease liability)

vii) The company does not have any market linked investments.

As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companics (Accounts) Rules 2014, for the financial year commencing on or afier the Ist day of April 2013, cvery
company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit
trail of cach and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and
who madc those changes within such accounting sofiwarc and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. In respect of the accounting software and
ensuring that audit trail cannot be disabled.

In respect of the accounting softwarc used by the Company, audit trail was not cnabled at certain master tables at application level and data basc level to log
any direct changes. In respect of such application and database, the Company has adequate general information technology controls including access controls
change management controls and manual controls which werc operting, to prevent inapproproate / unauthorised changes to the accounting software,
established and maintained an adequate internal control framework over the financial reporting and based in their asscssement, concluded that the internal
controls for the year ended March 31, 2025 were effective. The company is inthe process of system upgradation to meet the audit trail requirements for the
relevantmaster at application level and datbase.
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Note 41:

Pursuant to the business (ransfer agreement executed on July 01, 2024 between the Company and Apollo Specially Hospitals Private Limited (ASIIPL), the subsidiary of the Parent Company,
the Fertility business of ASHPL has been transferred to the Company with effect from July 01, 2024

In accordance with the aforementioned BTA. the Company accounted for the business combination as per requirement of Appendix C of Ind AS 103 Business Combination which lays down
the principles in respect of accounting for business combination of entitics or businesses under common control. As required by the standard, pooling of intcrest method has been considered
for accounting of the common control business combination and accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Fertility business are reflected in the books of the Company at their respective
carrying amounts, The surplus or deficit of assets and liabilities has been accounted under business transfer deficit account in other equity.

In accordance with the requirement of Appendix C of Ind AS 03 Business Combination, the financial statcments in respect of prior period has been restated as if the business combination
had occunred from Lhe beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements i.e., April 01, 2023 and consequently, the amounts for the preceding period include the figures of Lhe
aforementioned business acquired.

Delails of the summarised values of assets and liabilities of Fertilily business as acquired and (he treatment of the net assels acquired is as under:

The details of assets and liabilitics as at March 3 1, 2024 of Fertility business transferred by Apollo Specialty Hospitals Privatc Limited (ASHPL)

. Reported Amounts as at Cnr.rymg P o Restated Amounts as at
Particulars March 31, 2024 husiness transferred as at March 31, 2024
’ March 31,2024 %
(a) Property, plant and cquipment's 173 3,040 3,213
(b) Right-of-use of asset - 4.565 4,565
(c) Capital work-in-progicss - 88 88
(c) Other intangible asscts - 28 28
(f) Financial assels - - -
(i) Other financial asscts 100 359 459
(g) Income tax assets (net) 5 - 5
(h) Other non-current assets - 118 118
Total non-current assets 278 8,198 8,476
Current assels
(a) Inventories 7 145 151
(b) Financial asscts - - -
(i) Trade receivables - 19 19
(i1} Cash and cash equivalents 34 4 38
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 350 - 350
(iv) Other financial assets 15 64 79
(c) Other current assets 5 151 156
Total current assets 411 383 794
TOTAL ASSETS 689 8,581 9,269
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 50 - 50
(b) Other equity 232 -1,858 -1,626
Total Equity 282 -1,858 -1,576
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings - 1,885 1,885
(ii) Lease liabilities - 4,828 4,828
(b) Provisions 1 26 27
(c) Deferred tax liabilities 8 - 8
Total non-current liabilities 9 6,739 6,748
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics -
(i) Borrowings - 539 539
(i) Trade payables 326 2,089 2414
(iii) Leasc Liabilitics - 490 490
(iv) Other financial liabilities - 448 448
(b) Provisions - 14 14
(c) Other current liabilities 72 120 192
Total current liabilitics 398 3,700 4,097
Total liabilities 407 10,439 10,845
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 689 8,581 9,269




The details of Incomes and expenses related (or the year ended March 31, 2024

Transaction undertaken by

. .~ |Restated Amounts for the

Particulars Reported Amounts for the the business transferred for vear ended March 31
year ended March 31,2024 [the year ended March 31, '2024 N
2024
Revenue from Operations 561 7,555 8,116
Other [ncome L5 26 41
Total Income 576 7,581 8,157
Cosl of malerials consumed R4 1,530 1,614
Cost of Services 174 2,248 2,422
Employee benefit expense 42 829 871
Finance costs 6 721 727
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 1,119 1,143
Other expenses 93 1.817 1,910
Total Expenscs 423 8,264 8,687
Profit before tax 153 -683 -530
Net Cash flows attriutable to the discontinuing opeiation
Particulars Reported Amounts as at Cashllow Impact on Restated Amounts as at
March 31,2024 business transfer March 31. 2024

Net Cash generated from Operating activities 244 1113 1357
Net Cash generated from Investing activitics 472 -198 -670
Net Cash gencrated from Financing activitics - -916 916

The details of Incomes and expenses related for the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Transaction undertaken by
the ASHPL for the period
June 30, 2024

Transaction undertaken by
the Company for the period
April 01, 2024 March 31,

2025

Restated Amounts for the
year ended March 31,

2025

Revenue from Operalions
Other Income
Total Income

Cost of materials consumed

Cosl of Services

Employce bencefit expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax Expense
Profit/(loss) after tax

2,087
2
2,089

472
705
224
171
259
523
2,354

-265
40
-304

7,280
33
7,313

1,390
2,537

954

583
1,220
1,811
8,495

-1,182

-1,182

9,367
35
9,402

1,862
3,242
1,178

754
1,479
2,334

10,849

-1,447
40
-1,487

The dctails of asset and liablitics as at July 01, 2024 transferred by the Apollo Specialty H

Particulars Amount
Assets:
Property. plant and equipment 2,935
Right-of-usc of asset 4,642
Capital work-in-progress 83
Goodwill -
Other inlangible assets 23
Other non - current {inancial assets 354
Other non-current asscts 152
Inventorics 151
Trade receivables 161
Cash and cash cquivalents 6
Other current financial assets 61
Other current assets 94
Total (A) 8,662
Liabilities:
Long term borrowings 1,709
Lease liabilities 4,142
Long term Provisions 34
Short term borrowings 597
Tradc payables 2,472
Lease liabilities 1,271
Other current financial liabilities 444
Short term provisions 14
Other current liabilites 103
Total (B) 10.786
Net Assets value (A-B) -2.124
Consideration paid 1
Gain/(Loss) -2,125

ospitals Private Limited to the company.
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Note 42:

Note 43:

Other statutory information
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.
ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
jii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any government authority.
vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or cntity(ics), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantec, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

viii) The Company does not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on May 06, 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Apollo Fertility Centre Private Limited

Sriran?Srinivasan Iyer Anulhay Prusha_
Director Director
DIN: 10334712 DIN: (18250351

Place: Hydcrabad Place: Hyderibad
Date: May 06, 2025 Date: May 06, 2025




